Section

AGENDA
Board of Trustees Meeting
Madison County Mass Transit District
8:30 a.m., Thursday, March 25, 2021
One Transit Way, Granite City, lllinois

Item

I. Pledge of Allegiance.

. Call to Order: Roll Call.

Ill. Public Comments.

IV. Consideration of the minutes of the February 25, 2021 reqular

meeting for inclusion in the official records of the District.

V. Financial:

A

B.

Investment Policy

Presentation of the draft Operating Budget: Michelle Domer,
Director of Accounting

Presentation of the draft Budget and Capital Plan, Michelle
Domer, Director of Accounting

Payments and Claims: Consideration of the February 2021
claims for payment.

Monthly Financial Report: Review of the monthly financial
records as of February 28, 2021.

VI. Transit Service:

A

B.

Managing Director’s Report, SJ Morrison
RideFinders Strategic Marketing & Communication Plan

Resolution 21-40 Authorizing Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise Program Revisions Pursuant to Federal
Requirements

Resolution 21-41 Authorizing the Execution of a Lease
Agreement with the lllinois Department of Natural Resources
for Property at Horseshoe Lake State Park

. Resolution 21-42 Authorizing an Award of Contract for the US

40 Troy Trail Extension

VIl. Other Business.

VIIL

Executive session to discuss the acquisition or lease of real

property under (5), and litigation under (11) of the Open

Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2(c)).

IX. Adjournment.

Recommendation

Approval

Discussion

Information

Information

Approval

Approval

Information

Information

Approval

Approval

Approval

Approval



VL.

MINUTES
Board of Trustees
Madison County Mass Transit District
8:30 a.m., Thursday, February 25, 2021
One Transit Way, Granite City, lllinois

Pledge of Allegiance

Chairman Jedda led the reciting of the Pledge of Allegiance.

Call to Order: Roll Call

Chairman Jedda called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m.

MEMBERS PRESENT: ALLEN P. ADOMITE, ANDREW F. ECONOMY,
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY, RONALD L. JEDDA, AND J.
KELLY SCHMIDT.

MEMBER ABSENT: NONE.

OTHERS PRESENT: ANDREW CARRUTHERS, LEGAL COUNSEL; SJ
MORRISON, ACT; SUMMER MOORE, ACT; MICHELLE
DOMER, ACT; PHIL ROGGIO, ACT; PENNY BROWN,
ACT; JONATHAN CORTEZ, ACT; AMANDA
SCHOMAKER, ACT; ROB SCHMIDT, ACT; KELLY
BRASEL, ACT,; & MARK ACHENBACH.

Public Comments

No public comments were presented.

Consideration of the Minutes of the January 28, 2021, reqular meeting for inclusion
in the official records of the District.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY, TO
APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR INCLUSION IN THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF THE
DISTRICT.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.
Chairman Jedda revised the agenda order.

Transit Service:

G. Morrison stated that an expansion to a five-member board would improve ACT Board
governance.

Adomite questioned if the Bylaws had a maximum.

1



Morrison responded five.

Jedda commended Mark Achenbach, President of the ACT Board, for the suggestion
to expand to a five-member board.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-39 APPOINTING DIRECTORS OF THE AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY
TRANSIT, INC

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

V. Financial

A.

Investment Policy

Morrison mentioned that he and Michelle Domer met with Chris Slusser, the Madison
County Treasurer, to discuss additional investment strategies. Slusser provided a
variety of investment options. Morrison suggested requesting proposals for a broker
to manage and diversify the investment portfolio.

Schmidt stated a broker would act with due diligence and in the best interest of the
client.

Jedda commented the board would need to provide an investing dollar amount
because the basis points would be dependent on the amount invested. The request
for proposals could be sent with the basis points for a specific dollar amount to be
vested.

Schmidt stated that ideally a broker would provide maturity, quality, stock
diversification, and liquidity when needed. A broker would be able to guide us to
liquidity, quality, and superior rates.

Jedda mentioned that diversified maturity rate durations would provide liquidity and
drive income. The investment policy would need to be modified to allow
diversification.

Schmidt stated it may be beneficial to review other public institutions investment
policies. Also, a broker could assist in creating an investment policy as part of the
scope of work.

Payments and Claims: Consideration of the January 2021 claims for payment:

Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the payments and claims report.



TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE THE PAYMENTS AND CLAIMS, EXCLUDING THE PAYMENTS AND
CLAIMS TO THE CITY OF TROY AND THE AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

TRUSTEE ECONOMY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE GUY, TO
APPROVE THE PAYMENTS AND CLAIMS TO THE CITY OF TROY AND THE
AGENCY FOR COMMUNITY TRANSIT.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE ABSTAINED

ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE

CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE

RONALD L. JEDDA AYE

J. KELLY SCHMIDT ABSTAINED

TRUSTEE ADOMITE & SCHMIDT ABSTAINED. ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION
CARRIED.

. Monthly Financial Report: Reviews of the monthly financial records as of January 31,
2021:

Managing Director SJ Morrison presented the monthly financial report.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE OF THE MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT AS OF DATE.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:
ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE
ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

. TRUSTEE SCHMIDT MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-32 AMENDING THE FY2021 OPERATING BUDGET
A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE



ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

E. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-33 AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO GRANT IL-2020-042 WITH THE
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION FOR ROLLING STOCK

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED

F. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-34 AUTHORIZING A BUDGET REVISION TO GRANT IL-90-X733 WITH THE
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:
ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
CHRISTOPHER C. GUY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE
ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED

VI. Transit Service:

A. Managing Director’'s Report, SJ Morrison
A FOIA request was received in January and withdrawn the following day.

The lllinois 102" General Assembly’s piece of legislation, also known as House Bill
3108, to eliminate special taxing districts’ ability to tax the sale and consumption of
cannabis had resurfaced with a different sponsor. The lobbyist was contacted, and a
letter was drafted to encourage the removal of the Metro-East Mass Transit District
(MED).

Guy excused himself from the remainder of the meeting.

Morrison mentioned bringing the Operating Budget and Capital budget to the board
for review in March, approval for posting in April, and considered for approval in June.

4



Jedda stated that it can be changed after the fact. Morrison state that is correct. The
schedule is per the lllinois Budget Act.

The Eastgate Park & Ride construction was on hold due to the weather conditions.
The building foundation is complete. The electric and plumbing installation would
resume once the weather clears but on schedule for the September completion date.

Morrison updated the board on the MCT Trail projects. Juneau continued to work on
the preliminary plans for the I.T. Beltline Trail. The project is partially funded with a
MEPRD grant and is expected to be sent for bid this summer. The Schoolhouse Trail
Pleasant Ridge Park Connector is under construction, and the completion date is May
26. The Nickel Plate paving project was in the preliminary planning stage, and bid
documents are expected next month. The Troy Trail Extension that runs along US-40
to Spring Valley to Formosa final bid documents were completed, and an invitation for
bids will be issued for March 7, and an award will be presented at the March 25 board
meeting. Oates was working on the utility coordination and the preliminary plans for
the tunnel under IL-157 in Collinsville. Phase Il of the Trail Beautification project was
scheduled to start within the following weeks. Morrison stated there were some neat
ideas for National Bike Month in May. The signs have been delivered for the MCT
Trails Wayfinding test site in Glen Carbon at Mont Junction to allow staff and trail
users to provide feedback before implementing system wide.

. RideFinders Strategic Marketing & Communication Plan

Amanda Schomaker updated the board on the Ride Finders Strategic Marketing &
Communication Plan.

The scope of work has been refined, and a draft is in the review phase. The bid is
expected to be issued within the coming weeks.

. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE SCHMIDT,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-35 MCT TRAILS COMMEMORATIVE TREE & BENCH PROGRAM

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

. Morrison explained the history of the development of the bus stop and the amenities
for patrons.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION TO AMEND RESOLUTION 21-36 TO A
FIVE-YEAR TERM, SECONDED BY ECONOMY.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE



J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE
ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY SCHMIDT TO
APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION AS AMENDED:

21-36  AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH
WALMART STORES, INC., FOR THE MCT BUS SHELTER AND RELATED
ITEMS AT THE WAL-MART IN GLEN CARBON, ILLINOIS

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.
. Morrison explained that the Health Department and a group in Alton were
collaborating to make vaccination sites more accessible.

Adomite stated there would be ample uses because vaccination sites were popping
up across the county.

Morrison explained that the routes serving vaccination sites would be free at the
dates and times of the scheduled vaccination clinics. Patrons who utilize the
paratransit service attending vaccination sites would be allowed to ride for free.

Morrison confirmed that a press release would be issued.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-37 AUTHORIZING FREE RIDES TO VACCINATION SITES

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

. Morrison stated an application would be submitted to FTA for specific line items. FTA
would then approve or deny the application or request a change in the submitted
application.

Adomite questioned if the grant was qualification based rather than competitive.

Morrison confirmed the grant would be utilized for transit expenses.



VIl.

VIIL.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:

21-38 AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION WITH THE FEDERAL
TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION FOR SECTION 5307 AND CMAQ GRANT
FUNDS FOR ROLLING STOCK, SPARE PARTS, SUPPORT VEHICLES &
EQUIPMENT, FACILITY REHAB/RENOVATIONS, BUS INSPECTIONS,
AND PROJECT ADMINISTRATION

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

Other Business

No Other Business presented.

Executive session to discuss the acquisition or lease of real property under (5),
litigation under (11), and discussion of lawfully closed minutes (21) of the Open
Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2(c)).

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO MOVE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE ACQUISITION OR
LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY UNDER (5), LITIGATION UNDER (11), AND
DISCUSSION OF LAWFULLY CLOSED MINUTES (21) OF THE OPEN MEETINGS
ACT (5 ILCS 120/2(C)).

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY  AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,
TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY  AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

. TRUSTEE ADOMITE MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ECONOMY,

TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING RESOLUTION:
7



21-29 AUTHORIZING THE RELEASE OF CERTAIN EXECUTIVE SESSION
MINUTES

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.

ADJOURNMENT

TRUSTEE ECONOMY MADE THE MOTION, SECONDED BY TRUSTEE ADOMITE
TO ADJOURN.

A ROLL CALL VOTE FOLLOWED:

ALLEN P. ADOMITE AYE
ANDREW F. ECONOMY  AYE
RONALD L. JEDDA AYE
J. KELLY SCHMIDT AYE

ALL AYES. NO NAYS. MOTION CARRIED.
Meeting adjourned at 10:10 a.m.

Respectfully submitted.

rmmer ). Wiy
.



1 SCOPE OF WORK

11

Overview

The District is soliciting proposals from all qualified investment firms who wish to be considered as an investment
manager for an assigned portion of the District’s portfolio. The selected firm will identify, evaluate, purchase, and
sell investments on behalf of the District.

1.2

Investment Management Services

The Investment Management Services shall consist of:

a)
b)

c)

e)

f)

g)

Evaluating the District’s current Investment Policy and recommending potential changes.
Managing the portion(s) of the District’s investment portfolio that has been assigned to the Contractor,
while complying with all aspects with the District’s Investment Policy.
a. The District expects the initial assigned portfolio to be $5,000,000.
b. The amount of the portfolio assigned to the Contractor may change over time due to the
investment results generated by the Contractor and the needs of the District.
c. Atthe present time, the District is particularly interested in purchases of short-term investments,
including municipal bonds.
d. The types of investments that the District would consider purchasing may change over time due
to the investment results generated by the Contractor and the needs of the District.
e. The Contractor shall evaluate potential investments using disciplined, thorough investment
analysis and due diligence.
The Contractor shall use a highly structured investment process which may incorporate, but is not limited
to, the following elements in the investment decision making process:
a. Establishing an interest rate forecast for short term and long term time periods
Conducting yield curve analysis
Determining the proper maturity and duration allocations
Performing sector analysis and making sector investment decisions
Conducting credit analysis of issuers
Selecting securities within the realm of permissible investments described in the District’
Investment Policy
In no instance shall any investments be purchased for the District without the express consent of the
Managing Director, SJ Morrison, or Director of Accounting, Michelle Domer.
The District, under this contract and not separately priced, shall receive and have access to any of the
Contractor's internal or external investment, market and economic research training materials and
support capabilities and services in the performance of the District's investment responsibilities. These
materials and services do not include proprietary models or information unique to the Contractor's
investment process.
The Contractor shall maintain close contact with the District’s Accounting Department and serve as a
resource of economic and investment information and research. The Contractor shall keep the District
fully informed of the rationale for investment recommendations and changes in the portfolio under its
management.
The Contractor shall be responsible for immediate notification to the District of significant changes in
personnel, ownership, resources, or firm direction. The Contractor shall discharge its duties under this
contract solely in the interest of the District with the care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man acting in like capacity and familiar with such matters
would use in the conduct of an enterprise of like character and with like aims. Moreover, the Contractor
shall utilize best practices of the investment industry, such practices to include but not limited to the
standards issued by the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute.
The Contractor shall provide the District with immediate notification of any potential issue that could
hinder the contractor’s ability to trade with full discretion on behalf of the District. The Contractor shall
maintain appropriate operational separation (i.e. a Chinese Wall) between trading and investment duties

o



1.3

on behalf of the District portfolios and any engagement such as creditor committee representation which
could affect the Contractor’s full discretion to buy or sell in the marketplace.

The Contractor shall work closely with the District’s custodian bank to facilitate the efficient and timely
recording of purchases, sales and other activity, reconcile securities and cash balances and provide
information necessary to calculate performance results. The District will delegate its proxy voting
authority to the investment manager. The investment manager shall maintain records of its votes and
report the results, at least annually, to the District.

Deliverables

The following are deliverables of this Contract:

a)

c)

By the tenth day of each month, provide the District with reports of the District’s portfolio balance as of
the end of the prior month, including at a minimum:

a. Investment name

b. Investment type

c. Purchase Date

d. Maturity Date

e. Rate of Return
By the fifteenth day of July, October, January, and April, provide the District with performance data and
analysis of the total portfolio for the prior quarter.
At least once each fiscal year attend a District board meeting to discuss the performance of the funds that
have been assigned to the Contractor for investment.

a. At this meeting discuss any recommended changes to the District’s Investment Policy

Technical Response. Technical proposal response shall be organized as follows:

a) Cover letter. Anintroductory letter to introduce the Bidder’s Offer. Provide highlights of the
Bidder’s overall technical response providing a statement explaining why the company would be
most qualified to perform the required services. The letter should include a description of your
organization including the year the organization was founded, and a description of any special
expertise your firm has in providing investment advisory services to local units of government in
lllinois. The letter must include the name, phone number, and email address of the individual(s)
empowered to negotiate with the District and bind the firm into any Agreement resulting from this
solicitation. Any exceptions to this RFQ, must be clearly identified in this letter. Bidders are
cautioned to limit exceptions, conditions and limitations to the provisions of this RFQ, as they
may be determined to be so fundamental as to cause rejection of the Offer for not responding to
the requirements of the RFQ. Bidders should set forth the specific reasons for each deviation so
that it can be fully considered and, if appropriate, evaluated by the District.

b) Response to the Scope of Work Requirements. In a concise manner, the Bidder shall address the
work requirements stated in Section 4 of the RFQ and how the Bidder can offer services that
meet or exceed those requirements and stay within budget. This response should address your
organization’s Investment Procedures, Approaches and Performance including:

i. A description of the process for investing and managing a short term fixed income
portfolio for local units of government in Illinois.
ii. Areyou an active or passive fixed income manager?
iii. What fixed income strategies do you offer?
iv. Do you buy and hold or sell before maturity?
v. Please submit a track record for local units of government investments that are
currently being managed.
vi. Describe what you would consider the most appropriate benchmark for this project and
why.
vii. Does your firm practice in any underwriting activities?
viii. A list of current local lllinois units of government assets under management.



c)

d)

ix. Alist of brokers executing more than 10% of your volume over the last 12 months.

X. Alist of total value of the soft dollar received over the last 12 months and their source.

xi. Describe all sources of income you receive in connection with investment advisory

services to local units of government.

Qualifications, Experience and Capabilities. The Bidder must be licensed to conduct investment
advisor and brokerage services in lllinois and provide a statement or documentation to that
effect. The Bidder shall describe its overall experience and past performance in providing services
similar to those solicited in this RFP. The Bidder shall provide a contact person, address, phone
number and email for several references. It is understood that the contract person must be
willing to briefly and orally discuss with the District the Bidder’s work for local governmental unit
investment management services.
Personnel Assigned. Describe your firm’s resources and capabilities. Subcontracting is not
permitted. Personnel assigned must all be independent of the District. Identify and include
biographies for specific key personnel assigned, their roles in relation to the work required, and
special qualifications they bring to the project such as certifications, licenses, achievements, etc.
Budget/Price. Present the proposed billable cost structure including, if applicable, the hourly rates
for personnel assigned to this project. Direct costs/expenses should also be listed, if applicable. The
description of the fee structure proposed for this project should include:

i. Timing of billing.

ii. Do you use mutual funds or ETFs that have embedded fees and other charges?

iii. Attach a sample investment contract with fee schedule.



MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT OPERATING FUND
TENTATIVE BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION
JULY 1, 2021 TO JUNE 30, 2022

PROJECTED OPERATING EXPENDITURES AND APPROPRIATION

Fixed Route And Paratransit
ACT Administrative Contract
Rideshare

Professional And Other Services
Trustee Expenses

District Office Expenses
Facilities Maintenance

District Budget Contingency

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

CASH ON HAND AT BEGINNING OF FISCAL YEAR

ESTIMATED RECEIPTS

Sales Tax Revenue

Interest Income

IDOT Operating Assistance

Federal CARES Act Funding

Local Sales Tax Reform Fund

CMAQ Rideshare Marketing And Outreach
Commuter Initiative

Fares

Other Revenue

TOTAL ESTIMATED RECEIPTS

TOTAL ESTIMATED RECEIPTS AND CASH ON HAND

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

EXPECTED CASH ON HAND AT END OF FISCAL YEAR

$27,431,000
500,000
1,147,000
326,000
30,000
620,000
955,000
1,000,000

$32,009,000

$585,000

$9,500,000
675,000
16,500,000
4,875,000
3,000,000
709,000
75,000
540,000
141,000

$36,015,000

$36,600,000

$32,009,000

$4,591,000




MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT
PROPOSED CAPITAL BUDGET
FY2022

ESTIMATED RECEIPTS

Federal Transit Administration Section 5307
Federal Transit Administration Section 5339
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ)

Rebuild lllinois

lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT)
lllinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR)
Metro East Park and Recreation District (MEPRD)
Future grants

Intergovernmental Agreements

TOTAL ESTIMATED RECEIPTS

PROJECTED EXPENDITURES

Bikeways

Bus Station/Stops and Park & Ride Improvements
Cooperative Police Bicycle Grant Program
Facility Improvements

Maintenance Equipment

MIS Equipment

Transit Support Equipment

Vehicles - Buses

Vehicles - Rideshare Vans

Vehicles - Transit Support

Contingency

TOTAL PROJECTED EXPENDITURES

ESTIMATED RECEIPTS (UNDER) PROJECTED
EXPENDITURES = ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

$10,264,300
0

4,482,000
14,757,173
6,000,000
741,000
2,350,000
34,073,249
0

$72,667,722

$27,805,000
13,596,000
50,000
19,860,000
290,000
3,050,000
95,300
30,301,000
882,000
146,000
2,000,000

$98,075,300

($25,407,578)




03/15/2021 11:44 Madison County Mass Transit District o 1
lowens ADVICE REGISTER - PER DIEM pradvreyg
WARRANT: 032521 From: 02/01/2021 To: 02/28/2021
EMP # NAME CHEK # NET PAY
10013 ECONOMY, ANDREW F 005210033 184.70
10011 GUY, CHRISTOPHER C 005210034 184 .70
10010 SCHMIDT, J. KELLY 005210035 184 .70
1138 Internal Revenue Servi 005210036 522.40
Total Deposits: 4 1,076.50
03/15/2021 11:59 Madison County Mass Transit District P 1
lowens CURRENT CHECK REGISTER - PER DIEM prchkreg
WARRANT: 032521 02/01/2021 to 02/28/2021 CHECK DATE: 03/25/2021
EMP # NAME TYP NET PAY CHECK # CHECK DATE SPECIAL
10012 ADOMITE, ALLEN P.  CK ©0.00 003210017 03/25/2021
10009 JEDDA, RONALD I.. CK 0.00 003210018 03/25/2021

2 ** TOTAL CHECK(S) 0.00



03/08/2021 13:25 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 1

tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE WARRANT NET

4210419 03/08/2021 PRTD 1253 City Treasurer-Grani 030421 03/03/2021 030821 26.00

CHECK 4210419 TOTAL: 26.00

4210420 03/08/2021 PRTD 3984 cCity of Troy 030121SPTPR 02/26/2021 030821 13.89

030121WSTPR 02/26/2021 030821 24.41

CHECK 4210420 TOTAL: 38.30

4210421 03/08/2021 PRTD 1220 Il1linois American wa 022521GCTC 02/25/2021 030821 237.49

CHECK 4210421 TOTAL: 237.49

4210422 03/08/2021 PRTD 1220 111inois American wa 030321AHSRIR 03/03/2021 030821 65.87

CHECK 4210422 TOTAL: 65.87

4210423 03/08/2021 PRTD 1220 I1linois American wa 030321AHSRWS 03/03/2021 030821 92.78

CHECK 4210423 TOTAL: 92.78

4210424 03/08/2021 PRTD 1051 Pontoon Beach Public 030221-1 03/02/2021 030821 264.18

030221-2 03/02/2021 030821 352.70

030221BwW 03/02/2021 030821 448.42

030221N 03/02/2021 030821 24.39

030221ss 03/02/2021 030821 22.00

0302211 03/02/2021 030821 37.65

CHECK 4210424 TOTAL: 1,149.34

4210425 03/08/2021 PRTD 1506 village of Glen cCarb 022221GLPR 02/22/2021 030821 10.80

CHECK 4210425 TOTAL: 10.80

4210426 03/08/2021 PRTD 1932 wex Bank 70518148 02/28/2021 030821 5,253.51

CHECK 4210426 TOTAL: 5,253.51



03/08/2021 13:25 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 2
tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
NUMBER OF CHECKS 8 *%% CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL **%* 6,874.09

COUNT AMOUNT

TOTAL PRINTED CHECKS 8 6,874.09

*¥%% GRAND TOTAL *¥¥ 6,874.09



03/15/2021 08:24 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 1

tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE WARRANT NET

4210427 03/15/2021 PRTD 1043 AT&T MAR21 03/01/2021 031521 22.93

CHECK 4210427 TOTAL: 22.93

4210428 03/15/2021 PRTD 1436 City of Highland FEB21HPR 03/05/2021 031521 206.26

CHECK 4210428 TOTAL: 206.26

4210429 03/15/2021 PRTD 2047 cCity of wood River 030921SPWRTC 03/08/2021 031521 6.50

030921WSWRTC 03/08/2021 031521 19.39

CHECK 4210429 TOTAL: 25.89

4210430 03/15/2021 PRTD 1220 I1linois American wa 030821SPATC 03/08/2021 031521 183.15

CHECK 4210430 TOTAL: 183.15

4210431 03/15/2021 PRTD 1220 I1linois American wa 030821WSATC 03/08/2021 031521 243.30

CHECK 4210431 TOTAL: 243.30

4210432 03/15/2021 PRTD 1733 Johnny on the Spot # 47-000241578 02/28/2021 031521 765.30

CHECK 4210432 TOTAL: 765.30

NUMBER OF CHECKS ** CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL *** 1,446.83

COUNT AMOUNT
TOTAL PRINTED CHECKS 6 1,446.83
“%% GRAND TOTAL *** 1,446.83



03/15/2021 10:04 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 1

tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE WARRANT NET

4210433 03/25/2021 PRTD 2501 Agency for Community FEB21BW 03/15/2021 032521 64,947.55

FEB21DR 03/15/2021 032521 236,043.16

FEB21FR 03/15/2021 032521 2,279,053.03

FEB21RS 03/15/2021 032521 41,162.64

FEB21VP 03/15/2021 032521 -14,403.75

MAR21 03/05/2021 032521 41,666.66

CHECK 4210433 TOTAL: 2,648,469.29

4210434 03/25/2021 PRTD 2501 Agency for Community 20211Ins 02/26/2021 032521 1,490,724.00

CHECK 4210434 TOTAL: 1,490,724.00

4210435 03/25/2021 PRTD 1501 Ameren I1Tinois FEB21 02/23/2021 032521 27.26

CHECK 4210435 TOTAL: 27.26

4210436 03/25/2021 PRTD 1501 Ameren I1Tinois FEB21-1 03/09/2021 032521 8,911.13

CHECK 4210436 TOTAL: 8,911.13

4210437 03/25/2021 PRTD 2031 Best-One Fleet Servi 80108274 03/03/2021 032521 250.00

CHECK 4210437 TOTAL: 250.00

4210438 03/25/2021 PRTD 1507 Energy Petroleum Co 1843737 02/16/2021 12100083 032521 13,238.29

1843738 02/16/2021 12100082 032521 14,364.85

1843746 02/19/2021 12100084 032521 14,775.64

1843747 02/19/2021 12100085 032521 14,771.71

CHECK 4210438 TOTAL: 57,150.49

4210439 03/25/2021 PRTD 1014 Granite City Townshi 021121 02/11/2021 032521 1,970.32

CHECK 4210439 TOTAL: 1,970.32



03/15/2021 10:04 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 2

tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE PO WARRANT NET

4210440 03/25/2021 PRTD 3920 The Jerry Costello G APR21 03/05/2021 032521 7,000.00

CHECK 4210440 TOTAL: 7,000.00

4210441 03/25/2021 PRTD 1602 Madison County State APR21 03/05/2021 032521 8,000.00

CHECK 4210441 TOTAL: 8,000.00

4210442 03/25/2021 PRTD 1874 Main Street Communit 022621 01/20/2021 032521 547.72

CHECK 4210442 TOTAL: 547.72

4210443 03/25/2021 PRTD 1698 0'Brien Tire & Auto 0227251 03/01/2021 032521 1,018.32

0227344 03/03/2021 032521 396.39

0227452 03/08/2021 032521 307.62

0227473 03/09/2021 032521 847.56

0227515 03/09/2021 032521 420.98

CHECK 4210443 TOTAL: 2,990.87

4210444 03/25/2021 PRTD 1173 Oates Associates 33562 02/22/2021 032521 9,795.00

33575 02/24/2021 032521 19,450.00

33628 03/09/2021 032521 4,650.00

33629 03/09/2021 032521 13,060.00

33647 03/09/2021 032521 10,673.50

CHECK 4210444 TOTAL: 57,628.50

4210445 03/25/2021 PRTD 1757 Piasa Motor Fuels LL 256687 02/25/2021 12100087 032521 15,454.68

256737 03/02/2021 12100088 032521 14,242.10

256738 03/02/2021 12100090 032521 14,839.37

256739 03/02/2021 12100089 032521 14,823.54



03/15/2021 10:04 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 3
tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE PO WARRANT NET
CHECK 4210445 TOTAL: 59,359.69
4210446 03/25/2021 PRTD 3980 The Bancorp Bank 501519-47 03/01/2021 12000100 032521 992.13
CHECK 4210446 TOTAL: 992.13
4210447 03/25/2021 PRTD 3811 Thouvenot, Wade & Mo 68477 01/31/2021 032521 618.92
68836 02/28/2021 032521 1,886.00
CHECK 4210447 TOTAL: 2,504.92
4210448 03/25/2021 PRTD 3986 Michael Joseph walte MAR21 03/05/2021 032521 5,000.00
CHECK 4210448 TOTAL: 5,000.00
4210449 03/25/2021 PRTD 3923 Xerox Corporation 012749897 03/01/2021 12000127 032521 57.00
012749898 03/01/2021 12000127 032521 152.00
CHECK 4210449 TOTAL: 209.00
NUMBER OF CHECKS %% CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL *%** 4,351,735.32

COUNT AMOUNT

TOTAL PRINTED CHECKS 17 4,351,735.32
%% GRAND TOTAL **% 4,351,735.32



03/15/2021 11:43 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 1

tpohTman | ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE PO WARRANT NET
9210028 03/25/2021 EFT 4013 Andrew Economy FEB21 03/03/2021 032521 8.96
CHECK 9210028 TOTAL: 8.96
9210029 03/25/2021 EFT 3982 Ronald L. Jedda FEB21 03/03/2021 032521 10.64
CHECK 9210029 TOTAL: 10.64
9210030 03/25/2021 EFT 3994 3. Kelly Schmidt FEB21 03/03/2021 032521 8.96
CHECK 9210030 TOTAL: 8.96
NUMBER OF CHECKS 3 *%% CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL *¥%* 28.56

COUNT AMOUNT

TOTAL EFT'S 3 28.56

*¥% GRAND TOTAL *¥¥* 28.56



03/24/2021 11:13 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 1

tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE WARRANT NET

4210450 03/25/2021 PRTD 4012 AAIC, Inc. 16922 03/04/2021 0325218 80,383.73

16928 03/09/2021 0325218 73.50

CHECK 4210450 TOTAL: 80,457.23

4210451 03/25/2021 PRTD 4026 Bank of Belleville 031921 03/19/2021 0325218 500,000.00

CHECK 4210451 TOTAL: 500,000.00

4210452 03/25/2021 PRTD 2031 Best-One Fleet Servi 80108533 03/10/2021 0325218 20.00

80108747 03/16/2021 0325218 108.00

CHECK 4210452 TOTAL: 128.00

4210453 03/25/2021 PRTD 4034 Bruce Unterbrink Con 99102 03/15/2021 12100045 032521B 122,578.20

CHECK 4210453 TOTAL: 122,578.20

4210454 03/25/2021 PRTD 3972 carrollton Bank 031921-1 03/19/2021 0325218 500,000.00

CHECK 4210454 TOTAL: 500,000.00

4210455 03/25/2021 PRTD 3972 carrollton Bank 031921-2 03/19/2021 032521B 500,000.00

CHECK 4210455 TOTAL: 500,000.00

4210456 03/25/2021 PRTD 3972 carrollton Bank 031921-3 03/19/2021 0325218 500,000.00

CHECK 4210456 TOTAL: 500,000.00

4210457 03/25/2021 PRTD 3972 carrollton Bank 031921-4 03/19/2021 0325218 500,000.00

CHECK 4210457 TOTAL: 500,000.00

4210458 03/25/2021 PRTD 3972 cCarrollton Bank 031921-5 03/19/2021 0325218 500,000.00

CHECK 4210458 TOTAL: 500,000.00

4210459 03/25/2021 PRTD 1433 City of Edwardsville 031921L 03/19/2021 0325218 66.70

031921SPEPR 03/19/2021 032521B 8.12



03/24/2021 11:13 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 2

tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE WARRANT NET

031921wWSEPR 03/19/2021 0325218 38.16

CHECK 4210459 TOTAL: 112.98

4210460 03/25/2021 PRTD 4025 Edwardsville Bank 031921-1 03/19/2021 0325218 500,000.00

CHECK 4210460 TOTAL: 500,000.00

4210461 03/25/2021 PRTD 4025 Edwardsville Bank 031921-2 03/19/2021 0325218 540,000.00

CHECK 4210461 TOTAL: 540,000.00

4210462 03/25/2021 PRTD 1507 Energy Petroleum Co 1843851 03/10/2021 12100092 032521B 15,495.65

1844334 03/08/2021 12100091 032521B 15,293.10

1845621 03/15/2021 12100093 032521B 16,134.27

CHECK 4210462 TOTAL: 46,923.02

4210463 03/25/2021 PRTD 1029 Fort Russell Townshi 030821 03/08/2021 0325218 207.09

CHECK 4210463 TOTAL: 207.09

4210464 03/25/2021 PRTD 1014 Granite City Townshi 031521 03/15/2021 0325218 2,075.14

CHECK 4210464 TOTAL: 2,075.14

4210465 03/25/2021 PRTD 3936 Illinois Department 032221 03/22/2021 0325218 1,650.00

CHECK 4210465 TOTAL: 1,650.00

4210466 03/25/2021 PRTD 1220 I1linois American wa 0921TILRt3PR 03/22/2021 0325218 144 .14

CHECK 4210466 TOTAL: 144 .14

4210467 03/25/2021 PRTD 1439 Juneau Associates, I 44550 01/31/2021 032521B 2,180.00

44552 01/31/2021 0325218 624.56

44553 01/31/2021 0325218 19,901.88



03/24/2021 11:13 |[Madison County Mass Transit District |P 3

tpohTman | CHECK REGISTER |apcshdsb
CASH ACCOUNT: 10000000 10101 Checking Account

CHECK NO CHK DATE  TYPE VENDOR NAME VOUCHER INVOICE INV DATE PO WARRANT NET

CHECK 4210467 TOTAL: 22,706.44

4210468 03/25/2021 PRTD 3848 Missouri Highways & 032221 03/22/2021 032521B 167,022.20

CHECK 4210468 TOTAL: 167,022.20

4210469 03/25/2021 PRTD 1698 0'Brien Tire & Auto 0227721 03/19/2021 0325218 208.98

CHECK 4210469 TOTAL: 208.98

4210470 03/25/2021 PRTD 4007 Stutz Excavating Inc 031221 03/11/2021 12100077 032521B 11,025.00

CHECK 4210470 TOTAL: 11,025.00

4210471 03/25/2021 PRTD 1737 wheatland Title Guar 638402 02/24/2021 0325218 921.00

638725 03/02/2021 0325218 361.00

638726 03/02/2021 0325218 904.00

639312 03/11/2021 0325218 354.00

639679 03/17/2021 0325218 413.00

CHECK 4210471 TOTAL: 2,953.00

4210472 03/25/2021 PRTD 3923 Xerox Corporation 012828201 03/03/2021 12000127 032521B 141.00

CHECK 4210472 TOTAL: 141.00

NUMBER OF CHECKS * CASH ACCOUNT TOTAL *%** 4,498,332.42

COUNT AMOUNT
TOTAL PRINTED CHECKS 23 4,498,332.42
* GRAND TOTAL *** 4,498,332.42



Madison County Transit District

Management Report of Revenue and Expenses

February, 2021

Revenue

Operating Revenue

Sales Tax Revenue

Interest Income

IDOT Operating Assistance

Federal CARES Act Funding

Local Sales Tax Reform Fund

CMAQ Rideshare Marketing and Outreach
Commuter Initiative

Fares

Other Revenue

Lease/Rental Income

Total Operating Revenue

Capital Revenue

FTA Transit Admin Section 5307

FTA Transit Admin Section 5339
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality

lllinois Department of Transportation
lllinois Department of Natural Resources
Intergovernmental Agreements

Metro East Park and Recreation District
Total Capital Revenue

Total Revenues

Expenses

Operating Expenses

Fixed Route and Paratransit

ACT Administrative Contract
Rideshare

Professional and Other Services
Trustee Expenses

District Office Expenses

Facilities Maintenance

District Budget Contingency

Total Operating Expenses

Capital Expenses

Bikeways

Bus Station/Stops and Park & Ride
Cooperative Police Bicycle Grant Program
Facility Improvements
Maintenance Equipment

MIS Equipment

Transit Support Equipment
Vehicles - Buses

Vehicles - Rideshare Vans
Vehicles - Transit Support
Contingency

Total Capital Expenses

Total Expenses

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenses

Current Current Prior
Month YTD YTD
$848,656.53 $7,116,797.25  $6,933,339.20
77,783.05 679,555.08 959,517.83
2,645,486.38 10,741,172.76  16,401,248.62
155,540.00 371,132.00 0.00
398,281.11 2,875,556.92 2,185,319.83
0.00 178,253.00 130,763.25
0.00 33,088.86 44,928.36
0.00 165,000.00 499,034.62
0.00 136,542.05 381,360.40
0.00 20,170.18 24,751.54
$4,125747.07  $22,317,268.10 $27,560,263.65
$98,825.00 $327,907.00  $3,325,677.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 44,750.00
0.00 42,434.88 379,190.59
$98,825.00 $370,341.88  $3,749,617.59
$4,224 572,07  $22,687,609.98 $31,309,881.24
$2,786,010.01  $16,656,737.46 $17,003,961.07
41,666.67 333,333.34 333,333.34
45,350.05 592,164.67 286,074.53
20,168.00 175,377.49 149,771.00
1,105.06 8,813.26 9,588.12
38,974.82 270,318.47 291,937.63
65,810.79 481,096.93 481,352.52
0.00 0.00 0.00
$2,999,085.40  $18,517,841.62 $18,556,018.21
$76,408.42 $708,829.25 $949,384.59
4,640.00 342,284.64 150,386.65
0.00 7,907.94 0.00
143,432.18 401,013.35 163,705.89
0.00 380,543.50 12,750.00
38,996.00 52,849.00 72,072.00
0.00 0.00 173,433.89
9,800.00 13,800.00 6,437,968.23
0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 162,443.00
0.00 0.00 0.00
$273,276.60 $1,907,227.68  $8,122,144.25
$3,272,362.00  $20,425,069.30 $26,678,162.46
$952,210.07 $2,262,540.68  $4,631,718.78

Percentage
Increase /
(Decrease) FY21
Over Prior YTD Budget
3% $8,370,000
-29% 675,000
-35% 17,300,000
100% 425,000
32% 2,340,000
36% 400,000
-26% 94,000
-67% 700,000
-64% 52,000
-19% 0
-19% $30,356,000
-90% $15,680,512
0% 16,100,000
0% 4,405,000
0% 6,000,000
0% 916,000
0% 0
-89% 2,060,000
-90% $45,161,512
-28% $75,517,512
2% $26,883,000
0% 500,000
107% 1,026,000
17% 300,000
-8% 30,000
1% 476,000
0% 828,000
0% 450,000
0% $30,493,000
-25% $14,190,000
128% 5,646,000
100% 100,000
145% 13,742,000
100% 486,900
-27% 1,500,000
0% 495,000
-100% 30,512,500
0% 912,082
0% 382,000
0% 2,000,000
-17% $69,966,482
-23%  $100,459,482
-51% ($24,941,970)

Budget %
Expended
(67% of FY)

85%
101%
62%
87%
123%
45%
35%
24%
263%
0%
74%

2%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
2%
1%
30%

62%
67%
58%
58%
29%
57%
58%

0%
61%

5%
6%
8%
3%

78%
4%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
3%

20%

(%)

Page 1 of 1



1712021
12:37 pm

ASSETS

Checking Account

Prime Account

iHlinois Funds Investment Pool
Investmenis

inventory

Capital Grants Receivables
Other Receivables

Szles Tax Receivable
Interest Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Retainage Pavable
TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable Fund Balance
Assigned Fund Balance

Beginning Unassigned Fund Balance
Excess Revenue Over Expenses
Total Unassianed Fund Balance

TOTAL FUND BALANCE

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Madison County Mass Transit District

Balance Sheet
February 28, 2021

14,183.93
604.338.77
§.435.842.16
43,742 000.00
949,670.18
7.716.00
37.935.00
2.548,137.89
60,959.92
1.450.879.60
58.860.673.45

5.574.069.43
42.817.90
5.616,887.33

1.819.457.71
25.104.970.00
2405677773
2.262.540.68
26,319.318.41
53.243.786.12

58.860.673.45

UNAUDITED

Page 1



S8
L3 s
Lo I
(e}
=

Description

OPERATING REVERUE

Sales Tax Revenue

interest income

IDOT Operating Assistance
Federal CARES Act Funding
Local Sales Tax Reform Fund
CMAQ Rideshare Marketing & Outreach
Commuter initigtive

Fares

Other Revenue

Lease/Rental Income

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

CAPITAL REVENUE

Fed Transit Admin Section 5307

Fed Transit Admin Section 5338
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality
fliinois Dept of Transportation

lHlinois Dept of Natural Resources
Metro East Park and Recreation District
TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE

TOTAL REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES

Fixed Route and Paratransit

ACT Administrative Contract
Rideshare

Professional and Other Services
Trustee Expenses

District Office Expenses

Facilities Maintenance

District Budget Contingency
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

CAPITAL EXPENSES
Bikeways
Bus Station/Stops and Park & Ride

Cooperative Police Bicycle Grant Program

Facility Improvements
Maintenance Equipment

MIS Equipment

Transit Support Equipment
Vehicles - Buses

Vehicles - Rideshare Vans
Vehicles - Transit Supgort
Contingency

TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES
EXCESS REVENUE OVER EXPENSE

Madison County Mass Transit District Page 1
income Statement with Budget Variance for the
Period Ended February 28, 2021
Current Period Year to Date

ctual Budget Deviation Pet Actual Budget Deviation Pet vid
848,856.53 697,500.00 151,1568.53 12167 7,116,797.25 5,580,000.00 153879725 127.54
77,783.05 56,250.00 21,533.05 138.28 679,555.08 450,000.00 229,555.08 151.01
2,645,486.38 1,441,666.67 1,203,818.71 183.50 10,741,172.76 11,533,333.24 -792,160.58 93.13
185,540.00 35,416.67 120,123.33 43817 371,132.00 283,333.34 87,798.66 130.99
398,281.11 195,000.00 203,281.11 20426 2875556.92 1,560,000.00 1,315,556.92 184.33
0.00 33,333.33 -33,333.33 G.00 178,253.00 266,666.66 -88 413.66 56.84
.00 7.833.33 -7,833.3 0.00 33,088.86 62,666.66 -28,577.80 52.80
0.00 58,333.33 -58,333.33 0.00 185,000.00 466,666.66 -301,886.68 35.36
0.00 4.333.33 -4,333.33 0.00 136,542.05 34,666.66 101,875.39 393.87
0.00 0.00 0.060 0.00 20,170.18 0.00 20,170.18 0.00
4,125,747.07 2529666.66 1,5096,080.41 163.09 22,317.268.10 20,237 333.32 2,079,934.78 110.28
98,825.00 1,306,709.33 -1,207,884.33 7.56 327,907.00 10,453,674.66 -10,125,767.66 3.14
0.00  1,341,666.67 -1,341666.67 0.00 0.00 10,733,333.34 -10,733,333.34 0.060
0.00 387,083.33  -387,083.33 0.00 0.00 2,936,666.66 -2,936,666.66 0.00
0.00 500,000.00  -500,000.00 0.00 0.00  4,000,000.00 -4,000,000.00 0.00
0.00 76,333.33 -76,333.33 0.00 0.00 610,666.66 -610,666.66 0.00
0.00 180,000.00 -180,000.00 0.00 4243488 1,340,000.00 -1,287,565.12 3.17
98,825.00 3,771,792.66 -3,672,967.66 2.62 370,341.88 30,074,341.32 -29,703,989.44 1.23
422457207 6,301,459.32 -2076,887.25 67.04 22,687,609.98 50,311,674.64 -27 624 064.66 45.09
2,786,010.01 2,240,250.00 545,760.01 124.36 16,856,737.46 17,922,000.00 -1,265,262.54 92.94
41,666.67 41,868.67 0.00 100.00 333,333.34 333,333.34 0.00 100.00
45,350.05 146,866.67 -101,516.62 30.88 592,164.67 438,533.34 153,831.33 135.03
20,188.00 27,.800.00 -7,632.00 72.55 175,377.49 188,800.00 -13,422.51 92.89
1,105.08 2,500.00 -1,394.94 4420 8,813.26 20,000.60 -11,186.74 44.07
38,974.82 39,666.67 -691.85 88.26 270,318.47 317,333.34 -47 014.87 8518
65,810.79 69,000.00 -3,189.21 95.38 481,096.93 552,000.00 -70,803.07 87.16
0.00 -26,666.67 26,666.67 0.00 6.00 556,666.66 -556,666.66 0.00
2,999,085.40 2,541,083.34 458,002.06 118.02 18,517,841.62 20,328,666.68 -1,810,825.08 91.09
76,408.42 1182 500.00 -1,106,091.58 6.46 708,828.256 9,460,000.00 -8,751,170.75 7.49
4,840.00 470,500.00 -465,860.00 0.99 34228464 3,764,000.00 -3,421,715.36 8.09
0.00 8,333.33 -8,333.33 0.00 7.807.94 66,666.66 -58,758.72 11.86
143,432.18  1,145/166.67 -1,001,734.49 12.53 401,013.35 9,161,333.34 -8,760,319.98 4.38
0.00 40,575.00 -40,575.00 0.00 380,543.50 324,600.00 55,843.50 117.23
38,986.00 125,000.00 -86,004.00 31.20 52,849.00 1,000,000.00 -847,151.00 5.28
0.00 41,250.00 -41,250.00 0.06 0.00 330,000.00 -330,000.00 0.00
§,800.00 2,542,708.33 -2,532,808.33 0.38 13,800.00 20,341,668.66 -20,327,866.68 0.07
0.00 76,006.83 -76,008.83 0.00 0.00 608,054.66 -808,054.66 0.00
0.00 31,833.33 -31,833.33 0.00 0.00 254,666.66 -254,666.66 0.00
0.00 166,666.67  -166,666.67 0.00 0.00  1,333,333.34 -1,333,333.34 0.00
27327680 5830,540.16 -5,557,263.58 4.69 1,907227.68 46644321.32 -44,737.093.64 4.09
3,272,382.00 8,371,823.50 -5,098,261.50 39.09 20,425,068.30 66,972,088.00 -46,547,918.70 30.50
952,210.07 -2,070,164.18 3,022,374.25 -46.00 2,262,540.68 -16,667,313.36 18,923,854.04 -13.58

UNAUDITED



INSTITUTION

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT (CD)
Associsted Bank
Associated Bank

Bank of Hillshors

Bank of Hillsboro

Bank of Hillsboro

Bank of Hilisboro

Bank of Hillsboro

Bank of Hillsborp

Bank of Hillsboro

Bark of Hillsboro

Bank of Hillsboro

Bank of Hillsboro

Bank of Hillsboro

Bank of Hillsboro

Bark of Hilshoro

Bank of Hillsborm
Bradford National Bank of Greenville
Bradford National Bank of Gresnville
Busey Bank

Busey Bank

Carroliton Bank
Carrofiton Bank
Carroliton Bank

CHE Bank & Trust, NA
Comgnerce Bank

FCB Banks

FOE Banks

FLE Banke

FCE Banks

FCB Hanks

FLCE Banks

FLB Banks

FOB Banks

FCB Banks

FCB Banks

FCB Banks

First Mid Bank & Trust
Sinmons Bank
Shmons Bank
Simmons Bank
Sirnmons Bank
Simmons Bank

State Bank of 5% Jacoh
Siate Bank of 51 Jacob
Town and Country Bank
Urited Community Bank

MCT DETAILED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
AT FEBRUARY 28, 2021

PURCHASE
DATE

07-02-18
07-30-18
020819
97-03-18
11-01-18
11-01-18
02-08-19
0501189
050118
11-23-20
110818
11-23-20
03-08-20
03-06-20
11-23-20
12-23-20
04-27-18
08-06-18
02-0812
oz-o8-19
03-08-18
o8-10-18
12-23-20
05-10-18
36-11-18
10-31-18
10-31-18
05-02-18
161218
02-08-1¢
0z-08-12
04-05-19
0B-10-18
061018
G7-11-18
11-23-20
070218
11-08-18
11-15-19
11-15-18
12-23-20
12-23-20
07-27-20
08-25-20
04-18-18
08-02-20

PENDING CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT (CD) ACTIVITY

TOTAL CD'E

CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ACCOUNT REGISTRY SERVICE (CDARS)

Bank of Belleville
Edwardaville Bank
Edwardsvifie Bank
Edwardsville Bank
Town and Country Bank

08-13-20
08-03-20
10-08-20
02-04-21
082118

CDOR
ACCOUNT
NUMBER

33546
EQATE
74422
EAZ15
?3&??%8
72880
76839
t*é?m
7102
74198
HETRAS8
ET4438
23
TS
ETETE3
TIHE
E3T4S0
e3TEE2
28118
gy
O
U780
w7458
1528
EN562

98814
ﬁ**%zﬁ’s
70579
14073
04803

MATURITY
DATE

o7-02-21
07-30-21
05-08-21
07-03-21
480121
11-01-21
02-08-22
04-01-22
05-01-22
05-23-22
110822
12322
1206-22
02-06-23
11-23-23
12-23-23
04-27-21
g65-06-21
03-06-21
04-06-21
08-08-2
11-10-21
12-23-23
051021
08-11-21
£3-01-21
24-01-21
05-02-21
101221
12-06-21
01-06-22
03-05-22
051022
05-10-22
07-11-22
08-23-23
08-28-21
00821
0B-15-22
08-15.22
01-23-23
03-23-23
97-27-22
08-25-22
041621
08-02-23

08-12.21
09-02-21
10-08-22
02-02-23
06-17-21

INTEREST CERTIFICATE

RATES

2.85%
2.80%
3.00%
2.85%
3.05%
3.10%
3.10%
295%
3.00%
0.55%
2.25%
0.75%
1.95%
1.95%
0.85%
0.75%
Z40%
2.40%
2.82%

2.85%
276%
0.50%
2.40%
285%
297%
297%
2.30%
3.00%
2.89%
204%
3.02%
287%
287%
2.66%
0.85%
2.85%
1.88%
1.88%
1.88%
0.50%
0.50%
1.00%
0.65%
2.05%
0.85%

0.80%
070%
0.75%
0.60%
2.35%

PENDING CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT ACCOUNT REGISTRY SERVICE (CDARS) ACTIVITY

TOTAL CDARS
TOTAL INVESTMENTS

CASH ACCOUNTS

MCT checking account

MCT prime acoount

HHiinois Funds investment pool
TOTAL CASH

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS

0.10%
010%
0.0668%

AMOUNT

675,000.00
1,000,000.00
20000000
600,000.00
1,000,000.00
942,000.00
1,250,000.00
1,000,000.00
500,000.0C
1,800,000.00
2,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
250,000.00
350,000.00
500,000.00
520,000.00
300,000.00
1,000,000.00
500,000.00
1,000,000.00
400,000.00
1,350,000.00
480,000.00
240,000.00
400,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
2,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
500,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,500,000.00
675,000.00
1,600,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
2,000,00000
1,000,000.00
630,000.00
100,000.00
1,000,000.00

39,342.000.00

1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
1,000,000.00
$,000,000.00

400,000.00

440000000

43 742,000.00

14,193.93
604,338 77
8,435,842 16

008437466

53,796374.88

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
INTEREST

2.11%

0.86%

0.07%

1.82%



.—... q 3 al
Wil ..,___uu
P A
e
§ .r-L..‘ _f. .
..,.._3 3
- " _ ._
— - — i ._u_.. - .r
| h - -.IFI a
T ol K )
L .-.M _....__. ¥
3 1 % BB EY ;
™ 1 " b
[
L] .
1
L8
1 -

‘a
=
=
b
-

i
. |
-l

o) 11

“.—- i o .. . ¥ 1 X L} ¥ L ..If._....l...'ﬂ i 1 % .—. Y F lh.
]

: . a1l
: . il ....._,d..__“___:: LA

¥ MUL ._‘-_.._... ._m_ 1, ___;__uu._u..r:__“_.__.__.___..f,
."..._ -.—m ¥ h__. o ﬂ. ; ., .q..___q._ ’ &
...nq....:_.qu_\..._.« ' T _". _n.._r_.—......_..._np. . "

, . A | L R Altal
q.- ] ) ; i AT LY _.._.__...... CAAY ......4.._._....-q..
-.J * i L s .1L | | m_. _“._1|.uhng i .w 's)) | | i ¢ l...__..H_._. uT .._ |..I :

Jid .Y Wk

...._— "

SN i

e

i . I _..L. . 111 | i ] 1 ...._u_. f . ) /
_ _;.ﬁ—__r PRy i "y ; | pi i s M .
Pl | __ { ...-;___ f _a- [ : v . .__. .\.b | n A v.__. i_.___..h ; | . . O J A

....-_...

d—u L el i e
L -

.
T

%
¥

-2

e

L

Ik o
15 B ) 1
LSy 2o

f [ . o
....____ ____."._.._ i
._..q_—._.“.H-“ﬂ -..ﬂl T
._..-.c”_” .._h‘ "
____._q”.u.._.__“"u_r....ir.- P
._.H.-..-.h j "
el el _v

&

o

e 2 |

L)
1.-"..-'
i -
"?" Wt 1

>

X
e

B

A

-.-‘.._- WY

--I'“
s
s

--‘g.
2
i
[
Il
- L]
o
i

R
\

I o/ -
i = v__. ’ “u.

———
N

-r

- ...._ l
*
g & M
sl
._.r‘. ._ Ly
' e "l
&
- q‘—.‘-. .
1 1 o
Lk L‘ L m.-..l .___ -\-ar.-........ !
' L .___..:u. i} m. AT -.h
N L1.-_l1 ¥ ._._._.-___.‘__ il =
i u_..w ot u_n.. . - 1

... H
= . AV Sk L ARl A m A s
10297 | s P AN o
LT,

| _ _ 132 5 LM.W&%V

S Hoae e

.._ 1 r | 4 i ik _. c \ |..
AT

(RS

WL .....-.-.4r_._._....._..__.1..

‘-1-"”"'ilu.|.

i

EY
L




e o =T
S

i | e
P R

- =

v e i il i R
.-'_'w‘ -y } —-.-l- Y | .y i
23 TRl R e
-t ;

g

d = ;
AT
g2 —

= - gy -
a - - -
- ? S
- "
-

P e,
a -..,..._:.:' Tl i _ -

Tt wq_f-ﬁ:*._.% T

. % -H—“L','u-" ‘J. e n

Sy b o "Eiﬂ_i_*;; 3

X {.-.,.' - _‘._-'_ T |

iy ’-1..'..‘1. rfﬂ- '.r.'l*":-

g s, o Fpl e

- » T i‘}‘_'-l-.:r -

e 4 11‘."1.:

N b B ot i i
L

. . o e i,
P Ve

-} -

=

"‘ I-’ 4 r*

-
El

-

-
~
¥
&
i
-
rs
#

P i e e et



Wy o T S
y & 1]“..'_ =, -
i h...h..‘.-.- - mll..tl. L

..u.n_-b..-...n..r..

= .f_.n -

- JI. Y

£% a4 T

| gl &

I . T
Eany e "
F

L
LAy

-

= -
o wE

asf R L 2 e o~ a8

AV AR SR

a AL by

N e o W+
T aaa .h..n K5 i - o
e e g Ty
s . . b . "..Hl._.“.l... >
e .L*..r.“l..‘_...luu i
..1-....1 -y =

L .fr.._..-P.f _nI1

Sur ™

&ty u-,.lﬂ.H sy

L .I.”WWHL

E vl ok =

A
el T e
i,

.-_

- .

._W.“—m\h...r
L b i

Bl - ....‘. ..n

-

=
= L

"

ol
[

¥
.
i
i
-
Y

F e . ﬁ gt g S
LS i ._.____. t.__...___.__......,.rm._. ._.r.-_-;.h.l.__
1 b T Ry R b el | ey 1
Rt AT T R R e, &
5 ..'.u.J._.L_. J s . .....,. el T
. ; >y - = r. A L :

" ' o, T ... . _.._..5
-.__-..__ Na J?l .“_v 1 _Ir.._..ﬂ.... ; i .
WO TR Ly ..#.:.... A
AL e o N A TG

s

e i -
" i 1 ]
L I.:. I.ﬂ...r.f.l

"

Lo e W

-y " .._I.|_. " Vi il y g F..__.._ 3
v .....T t.....u R = X _n_..__....r.__ 3
{ Lo .f'l ..l-u. i - |.. 4 |.._.-...r
.T.J- r, ' j’r.l o ..!...-..I.L_I-.a.ﬂ

=
L] oy

"
- N
w._’. 1,

'y .......r..?..._fj_. gy,

a r. t ..n... ] . i i b g ; ’ 3 ! .IH.J 1._..... .....-._ﬂ. 5.
i . } \ | " 3 A sl F g W pa i 2 { .___._.“. e L)
-l 4 " Flae gy LN~ ¥4 g ] . d e Tail U LA,
. . . . . ....- . .. . .. ..... . . ..-.+..q_.-.__,_____|.ﬂa.._.-..___u.ﬂ._ ....
. . .. .. ... .. .....1..... ... r. _-. ..._.‘_- n ...-‘ .J.__‘_.
. . .. . . .. .. . . .. .. .1 . ... “ .. -... .. ...L..__ .q.-_l_l "u




. mcttrails.org Madison County Transit

CONNECTOR

To Heritage Trail
V4

L]

]
€
w
.
]
]
']
L
-







3.8 mi

= CONNECTOR
Access To:

GOSHEN TRAIL




A A

Mont Junction

Mt
HERITAGE TRAIL
B 4 Glen Carbon Jt. 3.4m §
4 CONNECTOR
[ Access To:
GOSHEN TRAIL

RONALD J. FOS’
% —

B g Gos




Madison County Transit

GOSHEN TRAIL

E: uE " . MCT TRAILS
7 v; Trails mcttrgls.org @ Loops




RESOLUTION 21-40

AUTHORIZING DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM
UPDATES PURSUANT TO FEDERAL REQUIREMENTS

WHEREAS, the Madison County Mass Transit District (District) is responsible for the provision
of public mass transportation services pursuant to Section 3 of the Local Mass Transit District
Act, as approved on July 21, 1959, as amended (70 ILCS 3610 et. seq.); and,

WHEREAS, as a recipient of federal funds, the District is required by the United States
Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration, to administer an ongoing
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise program pursuant to 49 CFR Part 26; and,

WHEREAS, the District is required by the United States Department of Transportation, Federal
Transit Administration, to submit an updated Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program to
comply with 49 CFR Part 26.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MADISON
COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT:

1. The Madison County Mass Transit District hereby approves the Madison County Mass
Transit District’'s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, revised March 2021, as
attached.

2. SJ Morrison, Managing Director of Madison County Mass Transit District, is authorized
to file the updated Madison County Mass Transit District's Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise Program to the Federal Transit Administration.

3. SJ Morrison, Managing Director of the Madison County Mass Transit District, is hereby
authorized and directed to take any and all actions as may reasonably be required to
enact and administer said program, and maintain the District in full compliance with the
provisions of 49 CFR Part 26.

ADOPTED by the Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, Madison
County, lllinois on this twenty-fifth day of March 2021.

(L) Lt

__“” Ronaldf. Jedda, Chairman

- QMQ/LUA) Ca v

/% .
My e

Ch nstobh'e/C Guy Allen P. Adomite

APPROVED as to Form:

Andrew K. Carruthers, Legal Counsel



CERTIFICATE

I, Summer Moore, do hereby certify that | am the fully qualified and acting Secretary of the
Board of Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District, and as such Secretary, | am
the keeper of the records and files of the Madison County Mass Transit District.

| do further certify that at a duly constituted and legally convened meeting of the Board of
Trustees of the Madison County Mass Transit District held on Thursday, March 25, 2021, a
resolution was adopted in full accordance and conformity with the by-laws of the Madison
County Mass Transit District and the statutes of the State of lllinois, as made and provided,
and that the following is a full, complete and true copy of the pertinent provisions of said
Resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
MADISON COUNTY MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT THAT:

1. The Madison County Mass Transit District hereby approves the Madison County Mass
Transit District’s Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program, revised March 2021, as
attached.

2. SJ Morrison, Managing Director of Madison County Mass Transit District, is authorized
to file the updated Madison County Mass Transit District's Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise Program to the Federal Transit Administration.

3. SJ Morrison, Managing Director of the Madison County Mass Transit District, is hereby
authorized and directed to take any and all actions as may reasonably be required to
enact and administer said program, and maintain the District in full compliance with the
provisions of 49 CFR Part 26.

| further certify that the original of the complete said resolution is on file in the records of
the Madison County Mass Transit District in my custody. | do further certify that the
foregoing Resolution remains in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto affixed my official signature as Secretary of the
Madison County Mass Transit District this twenty-fifth day of March 2021.

/Q/V/M/M%M %/) %4562@




Madison County Mass Transit District
Granite City, lllinois

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program

Revised March 2021



TABLE OF CONTENTS

l. POLICY ST ATEMENT ... e e e e 3

| I AN = = I [ 072N =] | I I I 2P 4

. DEFINITIONS ..o 4

IV. DBE LIAISON OFFICER ..o e e 5

V. GOALS FOR DBE PARTICIPATION ... 6

VI. FOSTERING SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION. ..., 8
VIl. DBE PARTICIPATION BY RACE-CONSCIOUS MEANS ..., 9
VIII. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS .. .o 14

IX. REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS/CLAUSES ..., 17

X.  MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT ..o 18

Xl. DBE CERTIFICATION ... e e 19

A A C MBI A oo 20
SIGNED POLICY ST ATEMENT ...ceeeee e e 20
AACIMENT B oo e e e 22
OR G ANIZA T IONAL CHAR T .. e 22
PN 1= 1o o]0 4 1=] 0 1K O UT TR UP TR 24
SAMPILLE FORMS ..o e e 24



Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

. POLICY STATEMENT

The Madison County Mass Transit District (MCT) has established a Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise (DBE) Program in accordance with regulations of the U.S.
Department of Transportation (DOT), 49 CFR §26. It is MCT policy to ensure that
DBEs, as defined in 49 CFR §26, have an equal opportunity to receive and
participate in DOT-assisted contracts. This policy encompasses the following actions:

e To ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-
assisted contracts by MCT;

e To create a level playing field on which DBEs can compete fairly for
DOT-assisted contracts issued by MCT;

e To ensure that the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with
applicable law;

e To ensure that only firms that fully meet 49 CFR §26 eligibility standards
and certified by the lllinois Unified Certification Program (ILUCP) are
permitted to participate as DBEs;

e To help remove barriers to the participation of DBEs in DOT-assisted
contracts issued by MCT;

e To assist in the development of firms that can compete successfully in
the marketplace outside the DBE Program.

Amanda Smith, Executive Projects Manager, is the delegated DBE Liaison Officer
(DBELO). In this capacity, Ms. Smith, at the direction of the Managing Director, is
responsible for implementing all aspects of the DBE Program. In the event the
delegated DBELO is unable to fulfill her obligations as DBELO (i.e., due to an
extended leave of absence, change in employment status, etc.), the Managing
Director is authorized to designate an interim and/or replacement DBELO.
Implementation of the DBE Program is accorded the same priority as compliance with
all other legal obligations incurred by MCT in its financial assistance agreements with
DOT.

This policy statement is distributed to all directors, managers, supervisors, and
procurement personnel, and is conspicuously posted in the workplace for the
information of other employees and visitors. MCT also distributes this policy
statement to DBE and non-DBE business organizations known to be available to
perform work on DOT-assisted contracts, primarily via legal advertisements in
publications of community and business organizations representing minority and/or
women-owned disadvantaged businesses and through dissemination to Small
Business Development Centers.

A copy of the signed and dated policy statement is included as Attachment A.



Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

Il. APPLICABILITY

As a recipient of financial assistance from DOT, MCT is required to implement a
DBE Program in accordance with 49 CFR §26, which is incorporated herein by
reference. The DBE Program applies to all MCT contracts that are funded, in whole
or in part, by DOT financial assistance. In the event of any conflicts or
inconsistencies between the Regulations and this DBE Program with respect to
DOT-assisted contracts, the Regulations shall prevail.

lll. DEFINITIONS

MCT has adopted terms as defined in 49 CFR §26 to describe and carry out its DBE
program. Some of the more common terms are defined below for convenience of the
reader.

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) means a for-profit, small business
concern: (1) that is at least fifty-one percent (51%) owned by one or more individuals
who are both socially and economically disadvantaged, or, in the case of a
corporation, in which fifty-one percent (51%) of the stock is owned by one or more
socially and economically disadvantaged individuals; and (2) whose management
and daily business operations are controlled by one or more of the socially and
economically disadvantaged individuals who own it.

Good Faith Efforts means efforts to achieve a DBE goal or other requirement of this
part which, by their scope, intensity, and appropriateness to the objective, can
reasonably be expected to fulfill the program requirement.

Race-Conscious measure or program is one that is focused specifically on assisting
only DBEs, including women-owned DBEs.

Race-Neutral measure or program is one that is, or can be, used to assist all small
businesses. For the purposes of this part, race-neutral includes gender-neutrality.

Recipient is any entity, public or private, to which DOT financial assistance is
extended, whether directly or through another recipient, through the programs of
the FAA, FHWA, or FTA, or who has applied for such assistance.

SBA Certified firm refers to firms that have a current, valid certification from or
recognized by the SBA under the 8(a) BD or SDB programs.

Small Business Concern means, with respect to firms seeking to participate as DBEs
in DOT- assisted contracts, a small business concern as defined pursuant to section
3 of the Small Business Act and Small Business Administration regulations
implementing it (13 CFR part 121) that also does not exceed the cap on average
annual gross receipts specified in 49 CFR §26.




Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

IV. DBE LIAISON OFFICER

MCT has no direct employees, but instead contracts with the Agency for Community
Transit, Inc. (ACT), a not-for-profit entity, to carry out all day-to-day administrative
functions, including the procurement of goods and services applicable to the DBE
program. The Managing Director of MCT also serves as the Executive Director of
ACT. For purposes of this section, references to MCT and ACT are synonymous.

Amanda Smith, Executive Projects Manager, is designated by the Managing Director
to serve as the DBE Liaison Officer (DBELO). In the event the delegated DBELO is
unable to fulfill her obligations as DBELO (i.e., due to an extended leave of absence,
change in employment status, etc.), the Managing Director is authorized to designate
an interim and/or replacement DBELO. The DBELO may be contacted at the
following address, telephone, and e-mail address:

Amanda Smith

Executive Projects Manager

Madison County Mass Transit District
P.O. Box 7500

Granite City, lllinois 62040-7500
Telephone: (618) 797-4600

e-mail: asmith@mct.org

The DBELO is responsible for implementing all aspects of the DBE program and for
ensuring that MCT complies with all provisions of 49 CFR §26. The DBELO has
direct, independent access to the Managing Director concerning DBE program
matters. An organization chart displaying the DBELQ’s position in the organization
appears in Attachment B.

The DBELO is responsible for developing, implementing, and monitoring the DBE
program, in coordination with MCT management staff as appropriate. The DBELO
has adequate staff to assist in the administration of the program. The duties and
responsibilities of the DBELO include:

e Work with MCT department heads and the Managing Director to
establish overall annual DBE goals.

e |dentify upcoming procurement and contracting activities and ensure that
appropriate DBE goals are included in solicitations.

e Provide information concerning MCT DBE policy, goals, and contracting
opportunities to businesses and other organizations that represent
disadvantaged business community members.

¢ Notify known DBEs of upcoming contracting and subcontracting
opportunities through legal advertisements in minority-oriented
publications, Small Business Development Centers, and correspondence
with representative business associations. Ensure that bid notices and
requests for proposals are made available to DBEs in a timely manner.

e Participate on internal bid/proposal evaluation committees established by
MCT to assist in the selection of bids and proposals.

e Review third party contracts and purchase requisitions for compliance

5


mailto:ewerner@mct.org

Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

with the DBE program.

e Monitor the compliance of MCT contractors and subcontractors with DBE
commitments.

e Compile and report statistical data and other information documenting
DBE program activities and results consistent with DOT requirements.

e Analyze agency progress toward DBE goal attainment and identify ways
to improve progress.

e Advise the Managing Director regarding DBE matters and achievement.

e Act as liaison to lllinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) in matters
pertaining to the lllinois Unified Certification Program (ILUCP).

The DBELO is afforded unrestricted access to MCT staff and consultants as
necessary to carry out DBE-related activities. All personnel, whether employed by
MCT, ACT, or retained by contract, are ultimately responsible to the Managing
Director. To the extent that DBE functions are part of the assigned work of employees
or consultants, their achievements in this area are considered in staff performance
evaluations and consultant contract reviews.

V. GOALS FOR DBE PARTICIPATION

A. DBE Goal Determination

MCT establishes an overall three-year DBE goal for DOT-assisted projects
pursuant to the guidelines of 49 CFR §26. The goal calculation is a percentage
of all FTA funds, excluding federal funds used to purchase transit vehicles,
which MCT will expend in FTA- assisted contracts in the three forthcoming
federal fiscal years. Following is a summary of the steps used to develop the
goal.

1.

Projecting the Number and Types of Projects: Consistent with federal
regulations, MCT first projects the number and types of DOT-assisted
contracts to be awarded by MCT during the DBE goal’s three-year period.

. Determining a Base Figure of Relative Availability of DBE Participation: The

base figure is expressed as a percentage and is calculated by dividing the
total number of DBEs ready, able, and willing to compete for FTA-assisted
contracts by the total number of all firms (DBEs and non-DBEs) ready, able,
and willing to perform the types of work that MCT anticipates awarding. To
determine the numerator, MCT tallies the number of DBEs listed under the
relevant NAICS codes for MCT’s defined market area utilizing IDOT’s Unified
Certification Program Directory. To determine the denominator, MCT
sources current County Business Pattern data from the U.S. Census Bureau
website utilizes the same NAICS codes to tally the number of all firms in
MCT'’s defined market area. MCT’s geographic market area comprises of the
following counties in lllinois: Bond, Calhoun, Clinton, Greene, Jersey,
Madison, Marion, Monroe, Randolph, St. Clair, and Washington. These
same eleven counties also comprise the lllinois Department of
Transportation (IDOT) District 8 region.



Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

3. Weighting: A weight or percentage of the total funds, for each NAICS code is

then calculated by dividing the estimated FTA assistance per NAICS code by
the total estimated FTA assisted contracts. The Relative Availability of DBEs
for each NAICS code is next multiplied by the weighted percentage that was
calculated for each NAICS code in order to compute a weighted base figure
for each NAICS code. The weighted base figures for all NAICS codes are
then added to generate the weighted base figure or total percentage of
DBEs ready, able, and willing to perform on the FTA-assisted contracts.

. Adjusting the Base Figure: MCT then reviews past experiences with DBE

participation and current regional factors which might affect DBE
participation. This includes but is not limited to reviewing the current capacity
of DBEs to perform work in DOT-assisted contracting in comparison to past
years; reviewing information obtained through consultation with minority,
woman and general contractor groups; any information available related to
DBE potential for growth such as bonding and insurance issues; data on
employment, education and training.

Projected Percentage of Goals to Be Achieved Through Race-Neutral and
Race-Conscious Measures: MCT would prefer to meet one hundred percent
(100%) of its DBE goal using race neutral methods. However, history notes
that the expected DBE participation has been realized through a combination
of race/gender-conscious and race/gender-neutral measures. Therefore,
MCT reviews the past goals and possible race neutral opportunities for the
anticipated projects and then determines the percentage of the DBE goal to
be obtained through race-neutral and race-conscious measures.

B. Publication and Adoption of Three-Year Goal

1.

2.

Pursuant to 49 CFR §26, MCT will publish a notice announcing its proposed
overall goal before submission to FTA on August 1. The notice will be
posted on MCT’s website and may be posted in any other sources (e.qg.,
including but not limited to the Edwardsville Intelligencer and Alton
Telegraph, which are local general circulation newspapers, and in the St.
Louis American, which is a minority-focused newspaper). If the proposed
goal changes following review by FTA, the revised goal will be posted on
MCT’s website.

At its discretion, MCT may also choose to inform the public that the
proposed overall goal and rationale are available for inspection during
normal business hours at its principal office and for a 30-day comment
period. Notice of the comment period shall include address to which
comments may be sent.

. Upon conclusion of the public comment period, the DBELO will prepare a

summary report analyzing the comments and recommending modifications
to the annual overall DBE goal or methodology as appropriate.
Recommendations will be submitted to the Managing Director for
consideration. If no comments are received that would significantly change

7



Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

the goals analysis, the results of the public comment period will be
presented as an informational matter to the Board of Trustees with no further
action required. If changes are recommended by the Managing Director, the
Board of Trustees will review the public comments and make a final
determination as to the annual DBE participation goal.

VI. FOSTERING SMALL BUSINESS PARTICIPATION

As MCT strives towards realizing the maximum level of DBE participation utilizing
race-neutral efforts, a natural result is fostering small business participation.

MCT uses the definition of small business concerns set out in 49 CFR §26. This will
ensure that all small businesses allowed to participate in the program are subject to
the same size standards and consequently, compete with similarly sized businesses.
A small business will be considered qualified if it is listed with the SBA and/or the
ILUCP.

MCT’s has developed the following measures to offer contracting requirements which
facilitate competition by small business concerns and take reasonable steps to
eliminate obstacles to their participation.

e Schedule pre-bid and pre-proposal conferences at times that qualified
small business would be better able to attend.

¢ Provide informational conferences as appropriate to explain procedures
and forms, presentation of bids, quantities, and specifications as well as
required documentation of specific efforts to involve subcontractors and
joint venture partners.

e Encourage prime contractors to subcontract portions of work they might
otherwise perform with their personnel to qualified small businesses,
including DBE’s by including language in solicitation documents.

e Unbundle large procurements, such as construction and other multiple
phase projects, into smaller contracts whenever feasible to encourage
bids and proposals from qualified small businesses.

e Encourage prime contractors to develop or increase opportunities for
small businesses to participate in varied types of work in addition to
assuming increasingly significant projects by including language in
solicitation documents.

e Ensure that a reasonable number of prime contracts are of a size that
small businesses, including DBE’s, can reasonably perform by working
with procurement staff and engineers as projects are developed.

e Make available, at no charge, to prospective small businesses relevant
procurement materials that might assist such parties in formulating their
bid or proposal, except where MCT is legally restricted from making such
information available.

e Provide notice of advertisements to Small Business Development
Centers within the MCT regional area.

¢ Require prompt payment clauses in contracts.



Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

VIl. DBE PARTICIPATION BY RACE-CONSCIOUS MEANS

Should MCT become aware the DBE goal is not being obtained through race-
neutral means, actions will be taken to utilize race-conscious measures such as
those outlined below.

A. ILUCP Availability

Make available, either by printed or electronic means, the ILUCP Directory
containing the names and addresses of certified firms and individuals doing
business within the procurement area.

B. Set Contract Specific Goals for DBE participation.

MCT will establish contract goals only on those DOT-assisted contracts that
have subcontracting possibilities, and not necessarily every such contract. The
contract goal will be developed to reflect the circumstances of the specific
contract (e.g., type and location of work, availability of DBEs to perform the
particular type of work.)

1. Awarding Contracts with Contract-Specific Goals

MCT shall award contracts to the lowest responsive and responsible
bidder/offeror consistent with its adopted procurement procedures. Upon the
decision to establish a goal for a particular contract, the determination shall
be made as to whether compliance with the good faith effort requirements
shall be a determination of responsiveness or responsibility in the contract
award process. DBE subcontractor information will either be required (1) at
the time of bid/proposal submission as a point of responsiveness or (2) upon
MCT notification, up to five (5) days after bid opening as a point of
responsibility. The solicitation documents will clearly state which
methodology is being utilized. The prime contractor who is awarded the
contract shall make copies of all DBE subcontracts available to the District
upon request. The subcontractor shall ensure that all subcontracts or an
agreement with DBEs to supply labor or materials require that the
subcontract and all lower tier subcontractors be performed in accordance
with this provision.

2. DBE Required Submittal Information

Each solicitation for which a contract goal has been established will require
bidders/offerors to submit the following information on the DBE Participation
forms (See Attachment C):

a. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in the
contract;

b. A description of the work that each DBE will perform. To count toward
meeting a goal, each DBE firm must be certified in a NAICS code
applicable to the kind of work the firm would perform on the contract;

c. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;

9



Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

d. Written and signed documentation of commitment to use a DBE
subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet a contract goal,

e. Written and signed confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in
the contract as provided in the prime contractor's commitment; and

f. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts.

3. Evaluation of DBE Certification Status and/or Good Faith Efforts

MCT shall require that any DBEs listed by bidders for participation in the
contract be certified DBEs in a NAICS code applicable to the kind of work the
DBE firm would perform on the contract as of the time of required submittal
of documents. The DBELO shall review the bidder's DBE submittal to
confirm each DBE firm’s certification status. MCT shall accept current
certifications by the ILUCP.

Should the established contract goal not be met by utilizing certified DBE,
the bidder must show that all necessary and reasonable steps were taken to
achieve the contract goal.

Necessary and reasonable steps are those which, by their scope, intensity,
and appropriateness to the objective, could reasonably be expected to obtain
sufficient DBE participation, even if they were not successful. MCT will
consider the quality, quantity, and intensity of the kinds of efforts that the
bidder has made. Mere pro forma efforts, in other words, efforts done as a
matter of form, are not good faith efforts; rather, the bidder is expected to
have taken genuine efforts that would be reasonably expected of a bidder
actively and aggressively trying to obtain DBE participation sufficient to meet
the contract goal.

The following is a list of the types of action that MCT will consider as part of
the evaluation of the bidder’s good faith efforts to obtain participation. These
listed factors are not intended to be a mandatory checklist and are not
intended to be exhaustive. Other factors or efforts brought to the attention of
MCT may be relevant in appropriate cases and will be considered.

a. Soliciting through all reasonable and available means (e.g., attendance at
pre-bid meetings, advertising and/or written notices) the interest of all
certified DBE companies that have the capability to perform the work of
the contract. The bidder must solicit this interest within sufficient time to
allow the DBE companies to respond to the solicitation. The bidder must
determine with certainty if the DBE companies are interested by taking
appropriate steps to follow up initial solicitations.

b. Selecting portions of the work to be performed by DBE companies in
order to increase the likelihood that the DBE goals will be achieved. This
includes, where appropriate, breaking out contract work items into
economically feasible units to facilitate DBE participation, even when the
prime contractor might otherwise prefer to perform these work items with
its own forces.

c. Providing interested DBE companies with adequate information about the

10



Madison County Mass Transit District
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Program

specifications, and requirements of the contract in a timely manner to
assist them in responding to a solicitation.
d.

i. Negotiating in good faith with interested DBE companies. It is the
bidder’s responsibility to make a portion of the work available to DBE
subcontractors and suppliers and to select those portions of the work
or material needs consistent with the available DBE subcontractors
and suppliers, so as to facilitate DBE participation. Evidence of such
negotiation includes the names, addresses, and telephone numbers
of DBE companies that were considered; a description of the
information provided regarding the specifications for the work selected
for subcontracting; and evidence as to why additional agreements
could not be reached for DBE companies to perform the work.

ii. A bidder using good business judgment would consider a number of
factors in negotiating with subcontractors, including DBE
subcontractors, and would take a firm’s price and capabilities as well
as contract goals into consideration. However, the fact that there may
be some additional costs involved in finding and using DBE
companies is not in itself sufficient reason for a bidder’s failure to
meet the contract DBE goal, as long as such costs are reasonable.
Also, the ability or desire of a bidder to perform the work of a contract
with its own organization does not relieve the bidder of the
responsibility to make good faith efforts. Bidders are not, however,
required to accept higher quotes from DBE companies if the price
difference is excessive or unreasonable. Contractor must submit
copies of each DBE and non- DBE subcontractor quote submitted to
the bidder when a non-DBE subcontractor was selected over a D